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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you for

          3  coming. I hereby commence the meeting on

          4  Subcommittee of Landmarks and Public Siting and

          5  Maritime Uses.

          6                 Councilman Perkins, I understand you

          7  have an emergency in your district and you'd like to

          8  vote on the items we'll be discussing?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         10  very much, Mr. Chairman. I vote aye on all, and I

         11  appreciate you accommodating my schedule.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         14  Perkins, how do you vote?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Once again, I

         16  vote aye on all. And I want to thank you again, and

         17  peace and prosperity and good health to you and

         18  other members of this Committee and the City of New

         19  York.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote

         21  remains open.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, that was

         23  Councilman Bill Perkins. On my right we have Council

         24  Member Leroy Comrie, and we had, Councilman James

         25  Oddo, the Minority Leader is about to join us again.
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          2                 We have three items on the agenda and

          3  the way we're going to do this is we're going to

          4  take the three, do them individually, take the

          5  testimony on each, and then we will vote on all of

          6  them together.

          7                 So, Item No. 1 is LU No. 362,

          8  Brooklyn, Community Board 7. 20055121 PNK,

          9  application submitted by the Department of Small

         10  Business Services pursuant to Section 13012 F and G

         11  of the New York City Charter requesting the approval

         12  of a lease for the 25th Street Pier, and for those

         13  of you that are not aware, this is a momentous

         14  occasion in the history of this Subcommittee, at

         15  least under my Chairmanship, this is the first

         16  maritime use vote that we will be making.

         17                 So, when you do vote, please make

         18  sure to think about that.

         19                 You object to it? Okay, I give

         20  Councilman Oddo an opportunity to respond.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I just want to

         22  congratulate you on this moment, Mr. Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Without your

         25  leadership and astute handling of this issue, we

                                                            5

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  wouldn't be here today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

          4                 That was pretty good.

          5                 We have, to testify on this item we

          6  have Philip Sprio, of Rappleyea Public Affairs. And

          7  anyone else who is with you can take the witness

          8  stand. Please identify yourself for the record, and

          9  we're ready to hear you.

         10                 Push the button in. When it's not

         11  lit, it's working.

         12                 MR. ALVAREZ: Good morning, Mr.

         13  Chairman. Thank you. My name is David Alvarez.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Oh, I'm sorry.

         15  And David Alvarez from EDC.

         16                 MR. ALVAREZ: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: As well. I'm

         18  sorry, I didn't realize you were going to testify on

         19  this item.

         20                 MR. ALVAREZ: That's quite all right,

         21  Mr. Chairman. Thank you.

         22                 Good morning. My name is David

         23  Alvarez. I'm an Assistant Vice President with the

         24  New York City Economic Development Corporation.

         25                 The Economic Development Corporation
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          2  is designated by the City of New York to promote

          3  economic activity and is the City's lead agency for

          4  maritime policy and implementation.

          5                 I'm here today to discuss a maritime

          6  lease between the New York City Economic Development

          7  Corporation and Lafarge Building Materials, a

          8  subsidiary of LaFarge North America, the largest

          9  producer and distributor of cement and cement

         10  products in Canada and the third largest in the

         11  United States.

         12                 This lease is for the 6.8 acre, 25th

         13  Street Pier in Sunset Park, Brooklyn.

         14                 Under Charter Section 1301, the

         15  Council's approval is authorize the Commissioner of

         16  the Department of Small Business Services to sign

         17  this lease.

         18                 In May 2001, EDC issued a request for

         19  proposals, seeking proposals for a long-term

         20  maritime lease for the 25th Street Pier.

         21                 In August 2001, after a detailed

         22  review of the four proposals received, it was

         23  decided that none of the proposals met the criteria

         24  of the RFP.

         25                 As a result, EDC declared the RFP
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          2  failed, and each of the respondents was notified.

          3                 Following the failed RFP, EDC was

          4  made aware of several other companies that were

          5  interested in the site.

          6                 Pursuant to this interest, EDC

          7  received four new proposals, and designated Lafarge

          8  North America, based on a very strong financial

          9  offer, significant opportunities for establishing

         10  regular barge service to the site, and global

         11  experience and reputation in the cement industry.

         12                 Lafarge's proposal will generate 30

         13  full-time equivalent jobs in the way of construction

         14  and trucking jobs, and five on-site employees.

         15                 Lafarge's rent payments will net the

         16  City over $1 million a year for the next 20 years,

         17  at a ground rent that is significantly greater than

         18  what maritime tenants have paid the City in the past

         19  for similar properties in the area.

         20                 Moreover, Lafarge will be paying

         21  dockage and wharfage charges. Dockage, which is a

         22  charge imposed on Lafarge for every ship that ties

         23  up to the pier, will be approximately $20,000 a

         24  year. Wharfage, a charge imposed on every ton of

         25  product that moves across the dock will be
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          2  approximately $210,000 a year.

          3                 This lease also has a provision for

          4  two five-year options.

          5                 As part of this lease, Lafarge will

          6  undertake an $8.4 million capital rehabilitation of

          7  the pier. Currently, 52 percent of the

          8  weight-bearing piles and 30 percent of the

          9  non-weight-bearing piles and pile caps are

         10  significantly damaged.

         11                 Lafarge will bring the pier back to

         12  excellent condition and will add a fendering system

         13  that will support the vessels Lafarge intends to

         14  bring to Brooklyn.

         15                 In addition, Lafarge will spend

         16  another 12 to 15 million to build their trade

         17  fixtures on the pier, and I will let Phil speak to

         18  that in a few minutes.

         19                 Since last summer, Lafarge and EDC

         20  have visited with Councilwoman Sara Gonzalez,

         21  Community Board 7 and other elected officials, and

         22  community groups such as the Southwest Brooklyn

         23  industrial development corporation and UPROSE to

         24  explain the lease.

         25                 We have met repeatedly with these
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          2  groups to advise them as to the status of the

          3  project, and as evidence of Lafarge's commitment, as

          4  a sound corporate neighbor in communities in which

          5  they operate.

          6                 Furthermore, as a founding member of

          7  the Wildlife Habitat Council, where appropriate,

          8  Lafarge has instituted landscape planning

          9  considerations that review impact on wildlife in the

         10  design of their facilities.

         11                 Protection of the environment is also

         12  of great importance to Lafarge and, as you will

         13  hear, the Sunset Park facility will contain

         14  state-of-the-art features that uphold its commitment

         15  to environmental safety.

         16                 Finally, in keeping with a corporate

         17  policy of local participation in the communities

         18  where it operates, Lafarge will provide funding or

         19  in-kind services to the Bush Terminal Open Space

         20  Project, which is currently in design and will

         21  provide residents of Sunset Park with much needed

         22  natural areas, waterfront access and a spectacular

         23  recreational destination.

         24                 Lafarge's significant commitment to

         25  rehabilitate Pier 25 -- the 25th Street Pier, and
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          2  reactivation of the site for the benefit of the

          3  community in New York City was met with enthusiasm

          4  by local elected officials, as well as community

          5  groups.

          6                 Therefore we ask the Council to

          7  approve this lease with the Commissioner of the

          8  Department of Small Business Services can execute

          9  it.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 MR. SPRIO: Good morning. I should

         12  begin unless you want to interrupt with questions,

         13  at this point? Okay, thank you.

         14                 I am Philip Sprio. I work with

         15  Rappleyea Public Affairs. I am General Counsel of

         16  that firm, and we are here representing Lafarge

         17  Building Materials.

         18                 I also have with me Michael Fletcher

         19  from Lafarge, should you have any questions of him.

         20                 David has been kind enough to already

         21  describe the lengthy RFP process. We have been in

         22  discussions for nearly three years. I'd be happy to

         23  further talk about and introduce Lafarge, but I

         24  think it probably would be more helpful to go right

         25  to what this project is. And if you turn to page
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          2  four on the powerpoint that we handed out. The

          3  project is a state-of-the-art storage and

          4  distribution terminal. Lafarge has cement and cement

          5  products that would be stored on the site.

          6                 The distribution facility is going to

          7  maximize the maritime opportunity presented by the

          8  site, which is important to both us and EDC, as we

          9  put this together.

         10                 We are hoping that Lafarge's presence

         11  on the waterfront will help to stabilize efforts to

         12  revitalize the waterfront. We think that the new

         13  terminal is a major and a substantial project for

         14  the community, for the waterfront and represents the

         15  type of major investment that a large company like

         16  Lafarge could bring to Brooklyn.

         17                 The terminal represents four 1,500

         18  ton steel silos, and they will stand on, as David

         19  mentioned, a thoroughly rehabilitated pier. The site

         20  will include pilings, concrete pavement for traffic,

         21  truck scales, and truck load out facilities.

         22                 Lafarge is going to bring its

         23  products from its manufacturing sites, chiefly its

         24  Ravena facility, which is located in Albany County

         25  on the Hudson. That product will be brought from the
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          2  manufacturing facility by barge and off-loaded at

          3  this terminal on the pier.

          4                 At the new terminal, all of the

          5  product will move pneumatically. The barge is

          6  unloaded by pneumatic pipes. Everything is sealed

          7  within pipes, there is no open air transport of

          8  materials. Therefore, combined with the fact that

          9  they're going to be stored in covered silos, we

         10  think this will drastically clean up the site from

         11  which they're current, which is an aggregate

         12  operation.

         13                 It is the highest level of

         14  technology. It is perfectly safe technology, and it

         15  is totally dust-free technology.

         16                 In addition to the substantial

         17  investment in the pier, which we are ball parking in

         18  the neighborhood of $15 million to build the

         19  facility, Lafarge is undertaking the major

         20  rehabilitation work of the pier.

         21                 In working with David in EDC, we came

         22  up with an assumption of about eight and a half,

         23  $8.4 million of immediate work that needed to be

         24  done to rehabilitate the piers. David mentioned

         25  that's concrete pilings, fendering, et cetera.
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          2                 That is going to be done at Lafarge's

          3  cost. Certainly Lafarge is the one that is going to

          4  put the cash up front to get that work done and

          5  build a terminal.

          6                 So, they are stepping up right away

          7  to rehabilitate the waterfront.

          8                 We're also going to invest in the

          9  community. I should interrupt myself for a minute.

         10  Slides five through seven give you a visual

         11  indication of what this silo will look like, as well

         12  as what the traffic flow on the site will look like.

         13                 What you see on slide five is the

         14  barge on the right backed up against the pier and

         15  the four silos that we speak of.

         16                 Trucks will come, there will be ample

         17  space to turn around, pull under the site and be

         18  loaded again, dust-free, pneumatically, et cetera.

         19                 Slide six just shows further

         20  examples, and slide seven is sort of schematic of

         21  what it would look like from an aerial showing the

         22  traffic pattern.

         23                 The trucks that are loaded there will

         24  be loaded right there within the least site. There

         25  is room to que in line there. They'll not need to be
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          2  out into the community streets.

          3                 If there is any question there,

          4  otherwise I'll just continue.

          5                 The other investment that Lafarge is

          6  going to be making in the community, as David

          7  mentioned, is through construction jobs, permanent

          8  jobs, dockage and wharfage payments on an annual

          9  basis, and obviously by their commitment to become

         10  an active part of the community.

         11                 We hope that the project will

         12  maximize the maritime benefits of the site, and as

         13  part of the development of the project, we have had

         14  full phase 1 and phase 2 environmental studies

         15  performed.

         16                 We have received negative

         17  declarations on September 27th as part of the City

         18  review process. There are no negative impacts on air

         19  or water quality.

         20                 The terminal, in fact, as I

         21  mentioned, should significantly clean up the

         22  existing site.

         23                 We have worked very closely with DEP,

         24  EDC and our own consultants, AKFR on traffic issues.

         25  Trucks will que, as I mentioned, within the leased
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          2  property.

          3                 This is similar to an aggregate

          4  business. Our customers generally speaking are the

          5  readi-mix companies, the trucks are in there early,

          6  they're loaded and they're out. So, generally

          7  speaking, all of their traffic occurs before what

          8  would be considered the morning rush.

          9                 Most of the volume, again, is

         10  off-peak, and we anticipate through very detailed

         11  traffic studies that there will actually be less

         12  traffic under Lafarge's operations than there is

         13  currently under the aggregate operator.

         14                 We can talk more about Lafarge as a

         15  company, but if not, we'll entertain questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes, I was about

         17  to say that.

         18                 Councilman Leroy Comrie.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chair.

         21                 I want to congratulate EDC for this

         22  project and Lafarge for wanting to come in.

         23                 I just had a couple of technical

         24  questions. What street is the street that the trucks

         25  will move in and out of primarily? You don't show

                                                            16

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  that on the map.

          3                 MR. ALVAREZ: That would be on 25th

          4  Street. Right off of, it should be Third Avenue.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Third Avenue.

          6                 And where is that in relation to the

          7  Ikea site?

          8                 MR. ALVAREZ: Ikea is up in Red Hook.

          9  It's probably about a mile away.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: One mile away?

         11                 MR. ALVAREZ: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And what other

         13  development is being planned for the immediate

         14  vicinity for the waterfront in that area?

         15                 MR. ALVAREZ: Well, EDC has several

         16  major projects going on in that neighborhood. We're

         17  looking to reactivate South Brooklyn Marine

         18  Terminal.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is that the

         20  terminal that the cruise ships are going to use?

         21                 MR. ALVAREZ: No, the cruise ships are

         22  going to be going to Red Hook, Pier 12.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         24                 MR. ALVAREZ: And as a matter of fact,

         25  some of your colleagues are in the other room right
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          2  now discussing that lease.

          3                 In South Brooklyn we'll be doing an

          4  automarine terminal, and a recycling facility, in

          5  South Brooklyn Marine Terminal.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: This area will

          7  be primarily for rehab for more industrial uses.

          8                 MR. ALVAREZ: Correct. Industrial

          9  maritime is our focus.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So there are

         11  no recreational activity planned for anywhere near

         12  Lafarge?

         13                 MR. ALVAREZ: The Bush Terminal Open

         14  Space, which is the old Bush Terminal industrial

         15  site, which is just south of South Brooklyn Marine

         16  Terminal.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes.

         18                 MR. ALVAREZ: And right now EDC just

         19  received the record of decision from the state,

         20  since it's a Superfund site, and they'll be

         21  cleaning, remediating that site with State bond

         22  money and Laforge is going to be an active

         23  participate -- participant, excuse me -- in helping

         24  rehabilitate that site as well.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.
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          2                 And you said 25th and Third. Where's

          3  the nearest entrance or exit off of the Gowanus, is

          4  that what they call it?

          5                 MR. ALVAREZ: It's 39th Street.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: 39th Street?

          7                 MR. ALVAREZ: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, they're

          9  going to primarily go up Third Avenue and back and

         10  forth to 39th Street?

         11                 MR. ALVAREZ: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: To get on and

         13  off the Gowanus.

         14                 MR. ALVAREZ: Or they can go up Third

         15  Avenue to the Battery Tunnel or onto the BQE going

         16  that way.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         18                 So, will Third Avenue be

         19  rehabilitated as part of this process to make it

         20  more conducive to heavy truck traffic on a 24-hour

         21  basis?

         22                 MR. ALVAREZ: Currently that's under

         23  the purview of DOT. It hasn't been part of this

         24  project, no sir.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I recall Third
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          2  Avenue is a pretty hot marked street, so if you're

          3  going to put more heavy concrete and trucks on

          4  there, I would hope that, you know, EDC talks to DOT

          5  about, you know, redoing that street to make it more

          6  -- maybe Lafarge could put heavy concrete down

          7  there to keep it from getting torn up by it's truck.

          8                 I went through there for an event the

          9  other day that Sara had and the street was pretty

         10  ripped up.

         11                 MR. ALVAREZ: That's a heavily

         12  industrial area. It is a problem.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. I would

         14  have thought that would be part of the overall plan

         15  to, you know, redo those streets to handle that.

         16                 MR. ALVAREZ: One of the things we

         17  were concentrating was more with the park in getting

         18  the open space project.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Well,

         20  future planning can happen to.

         21                 MR. ALVAREZ: Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So we'll see.

         23                 A question on local hiring. How is

         24  that going to go specifically?

         25                 MR. SPRIO: Lafarge is going to be
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          2  hiring a project manager. We hope and expect that

          3  will be a local person. There will be a full-time

          4  project manager from the community, and then there

          5  will be roughly five full-time people, as well.

          6                 We met with Joe Longobardo and the

          7  Community Board to discuss that issue. We have no

          8  plans to bring workers in from somewhere else. This

          9  would be a community-based operation.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What skill

         11  level is required?

         12                 MR. SPRIO: The plan manager level, to

         13  give you an idea, would be -- I couldn't speak

         14  necessarily to education level, but you're talking

         15  about neighborhood of $60,000, $70,000 a year job.

         16  It's what I consider a very substantial position.

         17                 MR. ALVAREZ: Councilman, EDC and the

         18  Department of Small Business Services are also in

         19  preliminary discussions to set up a job task force

         20  for in connection with the cruise terminal up in Red

         21  Hook and the jobs that will be coming to South

         22  Brooklyn Marine Terminal as well.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. And that

         24  will be done with the Council member in the area and

         25  advice and consent?
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          2                 MR. ALVAREZ: Yes, sir. They've been

          3  meeting with the Council member in the area, and

          4  with the two community boards, 6 and 7.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. A lot of

          6  jobs coming into that area --

          7                 MR. ALVAREZ: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:-- I'd like

          9  local people and actually Citywide residents to know

         10  about.

         11                 MR. ALVAREZ: Absolutely. That's one

         12  of our main focuses.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         14                 And the trucks that you depict in the

         15  powerpoint, those are not trucks that go to the

         16  site, those are not trucks that go to construction

         17  sites, are they? These trucks go where?

         18                 MR. SPRIO: You're correct. Those

         19  trucks are our product.

         20                 Our product is a powder material that

         21  goes to generally a readi-mix company. Barrel trucks

         22  you used to see and readi-mix trucks, our product is

         23  mixed with sand and stone and water to produce what

         24  you'd see at the construction site.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So your trucks
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          2  are delivering to the readi-mix site?

          3                 MR. SPRIO: Yes, I think more

          4  wholesale rather than retail.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right. So,

          6  you won't have any smaller trucks, any barrel trucks

          7  coming to this site to pick up.

          8                 MR. SPRIO: Correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right.

         10                 Who, just as a secondary question,

         11  because I have some issues with Readi-mix sites, who

         12  monitors and controls those sites that the Readi-mix

         13  companies are, that they operate out of?

         14                 MR. ALVAREZ: No, many of those are

         15  private facilities. Owned by the readi-mix.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Owned by --

         17  but who is responsible for ensuring that they follow

         18  City guidelines?

         19                 MR. ALVAREZ: That would be generally,

         20  it's a combination of agencies, the State DEC is one

         21  of them, DEP for noise and air, the Police

         22  Department for the truck traffic enforcement.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, that's a

         24  different set of issues that you're not responsible

         25  for, but clearly this part of the plan is well
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          2  though out and I want to congratulate EDC.

          3                 I do want to ask you to do Third

          4  Avenue, though, and maybe as part of that project,

          5  because I think that that community would really

          6  appreciate it with all of the work that's going to

          7  go in there. If you're going to have heavy truck

          8  traffic, especially 15-wheel tractor trailers on a

          9  regular basis, there will probably be all parties

         10  involved to ensure that that street can handle that

         11  traffic.

         12                 Are you going to be operating 24/7

         13  or?

         14                 MR. SPRIO: We are still kind of

         15  looking at that. The current operator being an

         16  aggregate business, we're probably looking at

         17  similar hours. I can't say specifically 24, we do

         18  have a nice early morning rush.

         19                 Again, because we're wholesale, our

         20  product generally is out early and off to the

         21  readi-mix stuff.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         23                 MR. SPRIO: So, I don't want to

         24  misspeak, so I'll be a little bit careful, but, no,

         25  generally speaking, typical of the industry, for an
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          2  aggregate industry, there are early hours, there can

          3  be an afternoon second run in a high season. But I

          4  can't speak specifically to whether it will be 24.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, thank

          6  you.

          7                 Again, I want to congratulate you for

          8  wanting to be in New York. Clearly, there is a lot

          9  of work that's going to be going on, hopefully, you

         10  know, with the West Side, and we get 2012 and the

         11  other work, Laforge will be here for a long time,

         12  and I hope the local hiring really does happen and

         13  give us an opportunity to hire a lot of people from

         14  that community, and people from my community even

         15  that would be happy to travel over there once Third

         16  Avenue is redone.

         17                 So, we'll see.

         18                 Mr. Chair, I would like to thank you

         19  for the opportunity. If I could vote now? I have to

         20  leave. I'm sorry.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you. I

         23  would like to vote aye on all items.  Thank you very

         24  much, Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Council Member
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          2  Annabel Palma, please.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chair.

          5                 I would also like to vote. But I have

          6  one question for the company. Where the site is

          7  going to be built, are there any residential

          8  buildings or schools in that area, or is it strictly

          9  -- I'm not familiar with that area.

         10                 MR. ALVAREZ: It's strictly

         11  industrial.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay.

         13                 MR. ALVAREZ: The Gowanus Expressway

         14  separates the industrial areas from the residential

         15  areas.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you. And

         17  aye on all items.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, the two

         19  republicans on this Committee remain to hear the

         20  rest of the testimony.

         21                 Anyway, thank you very much for your

         22  testimony.

         23                 MR. ALVAREZ: Thank you, sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: The next item on

         25  the agenda is Brooklyn Community Board 9.  LU No.
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          2  364. 20055130 HHK.

          3                 Okay, application submitted by the

          4  New York Health and Hospital Corporation pursuant to

          5  Section 73856 of its enabling act, requesting

          6  approval of the leasing of the food service building

          7  located on the Kings County Hospital Center Campus

          8  to a consortium consisting of Sedexo Health Care

          9  Services (phonetic) -- I hope I've pronounced that

         10  correctly -- Inc., US Food Service, Inc., and

         11  Greater New York Hospital Association Venture, Inc.

         12                 And to testify on this item we have

         13  Frank Cirillo, of the New York City Health and

         14  Hospitals Corporation. If you can identify yourself,

         15  and tell us what your title is, I'd appreciate it.

         16                 MR. CIRILLO: Good morning. I'm Frank

         17  Cirillo, Senior Vice President and Operations, New

         18  York City Health and Hospitals Corporation.

         19                 HHC is in the process of structuring,

         20  restructuring food service operations within HHC.

         21                 Currently we employ 1,450 FTEs,

         22  Full-Time Equivalents, to prepare and serve 7

         23  million patient and resident meals annually. That

         24  process costs us $82 million and it is projected

         25  that in Fiscal 2020, that cost would increase from
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          2  82 to 117 million dollars a year.

          3                 HHC weighed its options. One option

          4  is to do nothing and let that cost increase. We

          5  would have to reallocate funds from other operations

          6  within HHC to pick up that additional cost. That's

          7  unacceptable to us.

          8                 Another option would be to outsource

          9  the entire operation, which would result in a market

         10  rate of $49 million a year, but that would mean we

         11  would have to lay off 1,450 people.

         12                 Again, that option was unacceptable

         13  to us. So, we looked for an alternative which would

         14  be to bring in a third party to manage food service

         15  operations within HHC, and do so utilizing our

         16  workforce, and just invest the capital dollars

         17  needed to retool both the Cook Chill Plant and HHC's

         18  receiver sites to reduce our cost.

         19                 So, in May of 2004 we issued a

         20  negotiated acquisition which is akin to an RFP

         21  process for a coterminous 25-year management

         22  agreement and lease of the Brooklyn Cook Chill

         23  Plant.

         24                 We have a 40,000 square foot Cook

         25  Chill Plant that was built 15 years ago and
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          2  outfitted at a cost of $12 million to HHC on the

          3  campus of Kings County. It was built with the

          4  intention of providing all meals that HHC provides

          5  the patient and residents through that plant, and it

          6  was also built with the anticipation of taking on

          7  other City agency business at that plant.

          8                 Those plans never materialized.

          9                 We have current 15-year-old

         10  technology in that plant, and there is no way we

         11  could service all of HHC's 7 million meals. So, we

         12  put out this request for proposal process. We got

         13  three bids. The winning bid was from the consortium

         14  of Sedexo (phonetic), US Food Services and Greater

         15  New York Hospital Association Ventures, Inc.

         16                 It is anticipated that the consortium

         17  will invest $39 million over the 25 years within

         18  HHC, $15 million being invested in Year 1. 3.5

         19  million of those $15 million will be invested to

         20  retool the Cook Chill Plant. We will run that plant

         21  six days a week, one and a half shifts per day.

         22                 It is anticipated that we will be

         23  able to service and prepare the 7 million meals of

         24  that plant rather than that 17 kitchens within HHC.

         25                 It is also anticipated that after the
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          2  vendor invest those dollars to retool the plant in

          3  our receive sites, that we will triple the capacity

          4  in that plant, making it available to other City

          5  agencies to bring possibly meal production through

          6  that plant, and thereby realize the dream, the goals

          7  that were anticipated when we first built that

          8  plant.

          9                 We should say that this process of

         10  outsourcing or restructuring the management of food

         11  services only, we've guaranteed to the unions that

         12  every full-timer will keep his or her job, and that

         13  we will inure benefit to HHC through this process of

         14  a minimum of $10 million of savings per year,

         15  reducing us from the $82 million to $72 million in

         16  the first full year of operation after

         17  implementation.

         18                 We've done some comparables with

         19  Cushman and Wakefield for that plant. It's a 40,000

         20  square foot plant, two stories on Kings County. And

         21  we will, HHC, as the landlord, will provide all

         22  utilities, and structural repairs and maintenance.

         23                 The vendor for the contract, or the

         24  tenant, will provide $3.5 million of capital

         25  investment for that to retool that plant and be

                                                            30

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  responsible for maintenance on the interior of that

          3  plant, and will pay us $960,000 a year in rent for

          4  the first five years, with a 15 percent inflater for

          5  each five years thereafter.

          6                 The going rate, as established by

          7  Cushman and Wakefield, for other areas within Kings

          8  County, is $6.50 to $10 a square foot net of those

          9  expenses. Net of the expenses that HHC will incur

         10  for this plant, our rent translates into $12 a

         11  square foot.

         12                 We've held a public hearing on this

         13  lease on November 23rd at the Kings County Campus,

         14  and our Board of Directors and the various

         15  committees of the Board, have approved both the

         16  management contract and the potential lease and have

         17  authorized the president to negotiate and execute

         18  the same.

         19                 We've also met with the unions and

         20  we've got letters of support from the teamsters who

         21  control the cooks, about 100 cooks within HHC. 1199

         22  for about 150 dieticians, and the parent

         23  organization, DC 37, of which most of the members,

         24  remaining members of Local 420, Hospital Workers

         25  Union, DC 37 supports it with changes that they
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          2  requested that we've implemented into the contract.

          3                 We estimate that it will take nine

          4  months to implement this entire process and

          5  reorganize and we think that by buying the food

          6  immediately through US Food Services, we could

          7  realize a $2 million savings in Fiscal '05. It will

          8  expand to $10 million and be fully implemented in

          9  Fiscal '06, and within three years after the full

         10  implementation, we should realize savings of $15

         11  million.

         12                 Any questions?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: The Minority

         14  Leader, Councilman James Oddo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair.

         17                 Frank, how serious of a consideration

         18  was option two, completely outsourcing and laying

         19  off 1,400 people. I mean, was it completely off the

         20  Board from the very beginning? Was it given an

         21  honest assessment?

         22                 MR. CIRILLO: We gave it an honest

         23  investment, Councilman, because it would drop our

         24  expenses down from 82 million to 49 million dollars.

         25  And that $49 million would ramp up by Fiscal 2020 to
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          2  $71 million. Those are huge savings. But Dr. Chu was

          3  committed not to lay off 1,450 FTEs, who, through no

          4  fault of their own, because HHC could not invest the

          5  capital dollars over the past 15 years, to bring in

          6  the technology needed to make this more efficient.

          7  We considered that impact on those 1,450 FTEs and we

          8  considered the economic impact on the communities,

          9  where as you know, most of our employees live where

         10  they work.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And believe me,

         12  I don't want to sound insensitive and minimize in

         13  any way the impact on 1,450 lives, I just find it

         14  interesting that the Mayor would say publicly that

         15  should this go the wrong way in perb (sic) that we

         16  might have to lay off police officers, yet when it

         17  came to cooks and dieticians, you know, people

         18  realized that that wasn't the way they wanted to go.

         19                 Let me ask you this: What we're

         20  talking about is we're freezing meals?

         21                 MR. CIRILLO: No, sir.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay. So,

         23  explain what the process is.

         24                 MR. CIRILLO: We currently cook in 17

         25  kitchens throughout HHC. We will now cook in one
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          2  kitchen.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Right.

          4                 MR. CIRILLO: The food will be both

          5  cooked and not frozen but refrigerated.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.

          7                 MR. CIRILLO: The product will then be

          8  transported to our receiver sites or hospitals,

          9  where the same plating process and delivery process

         10  will take place.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Now, will

         12  long-term facilities be treated the same way as

         13  acute facilities?

         14                 MR. CIRILLO: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.

         16                 MR. CIRILLO: Yes. With the exception

         17  that in the long-term care facilities where they are

         18  residents, where this is their home, we are

         19  considering other options like congregate dining

         20  options for certain residents and doing it a little

         21  bit different. A little bit more costly, but we're

         22  doing it because there's a difference between a

         23  resident who stays in our facility for several years

         24  versus an acute inpatient who stays for 4.9 days.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I appreciate
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          2  that you guys made that distinction, because I think

          3  it is really a different situation. So I appreciate

          4  that.

          5                 And you obviously know I'm talking

          6  about parochially in my own district in Seaview.

          7                 MR. CIRILLO: Seaview.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I just want to

          9  get the numbers down.

         10                 So under the system that we have

         11  chosen, of the three choices, do nothing, outsource

         12  it completely, outsource the management of it. Of

         13  the system that's chosen, we are talking about

         14  saving 2 million in '05, 10 million in '06, and it

         15  goes up to 15 million in '07 and beyond?

         16                 MR. CIRILLO: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: All right. Thank

         18  you, sir.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you. Thank

         21  you very much.

         22                 MR. CIRILLO: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I just wanted to

         24  mention that I appreciate very much both this

         25  representative of HHC as well as the previous
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          2  witnesses met with Erika Kabali (phonetic) from my

          3  staff and therefore I don't have anything to ask

          4  you. Because whatever it is, I keep on asking her

          5  the questions and she says they were answered

          6  already.

          7                 So, even though I would like to

          8  impress at least somebody in this room, I have

          9  nothing to say, and I appreciate your meeting

         10  earlier.

         11                 Next item is LU No. 370. Brooklyn

         12  Community Board 2. 20055096 HKK. Designation was

         13  number 3560 P2144 by the Landmarks Preservation

         14  Commission pursuant to Section 3020 of New York City

         15  Charter, of the Long Island Headquarters of the New

         16  York Telephone Company, located 97-105 Willoby

         17  Street. And it is indeed a beautiful building.

         18                 I worked for ten years right nearby.

         19  It's a beautiful building. Do we know whether the

         20  Council member is in favor of this? Do we know?

         21                 So, Diane Jackier, from the -- Diane

         22  has a letter from them.

         23                 So, Diane Jackier from the Landmarks

         24  Preservation Commission will testify.

         25                 And don't repeat anything that any of
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          2  the other witnesses said, okay?

          3                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, Council

          4  members. My name is Diane Jackier, Director of

          5  Community and Government Affairs for the Landmarks

          6  Preservation Commission.

          7                 I'm here today to testify on the

          8  Commission's designation of the Long Island

          9  Headquarters of the New York Telephone Company in

         10  Brooklyn as a New York City landmark.

         11                 On June 15th, 2004, the Landmarks

         12  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         13  designation. Two speakers, including a

         14  representative of the owner, Verizon New York, and a

         15  representative of the Historics District Council

         16  spoke in favor. There were no speakers in

         17  opposition.

         18                 The Commission also received a letter

         19  from Councilman David Yassky in support of

         20  designation.

         21                 On September 21st, 2004, the

         22  Commission voted to designate the building a New

         23  York City landmark.

         24                 Built in 1929 to 1930, the building

         25  is an example of architect Ralph Walker's long and
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          2  productive association with the communications

          3  industry.

          4                 Walker was a prominent New York

          5  architect whose expressive tall buildings, prolific

          6  writings and professional leadership made him one of

          7  the foremost representatives of his field during his

          8  lifetime. In this dramatically massed orange brick

          9  skyscraper, Walker illustrates his exceptional

         10  ability to apply the Art Deco style to a large

         11  office tower.

         12                 The structure is faced with multiple

         13  sizes of brick, laid in a variety of patterns and

         14  planes to create a rich facade design.

         15                 Horizontal patterns of pattern brick

         16  enhance each setback leading to the central tower.

         17  At the same time, the verticality of the structure

         18  is emphasized by narrow sections of the facade that

         19  soar upward.

         20                 The location of this large, important

         21  structure in downtown Brooklyn enforced the

         22  commitment of the New York Telephone Company to the

         23  growth and advancement of the most modern telephone

         24  service to the expanding area of Brooklyn and Long

         25  Island. The building is currently owned and occupied

                                                            38

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  by Verizon New York.

          3                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          4  the designation of the Long Island headquarters of

          5  the New York Telephone Company Building.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excuse me. You

          7  said you had a letter from the Council member?

          8                 MS. JACKIER: I do. I just have to

          9  find it in my file.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We trust you.

         11                 MS. JACKIER: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: And if you don't

         13  get it to us, you know what will happen.

         14                 And now, in terms of the community

         15  board?

         16                 MS. JACKIER: We contact the community

         17  boards for all of our designations to let them know

         18  of our public hearing. We did not hear from them for

         19  this designation?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Was there anyone

         21  opposed?

         22                 MS. JACKIER: There was no one

         23  opposed.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay.

         25                 Does anyone have any questions? Does
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          2  anyone else have any questions?

          3                 All right. Thank you very much.

          4                 Can we vote now? I recommend a yes

          5  vote on all the items.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Felder.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          9  Oddo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         12  at four in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         13  no abstentions and refers to the full Land Use

         14  Committee.

         15                 I'm sorry. Correction. Five in the

         16  affirmative, none in the negative, and no

         17  abstentions, and refers to the full Land Use

         18  Committee.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 12:00 p.m.)
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